Licensing

From: Licensing Standards Officer
Sent: 08 January 2024 08:57

To: Licensing

Cc: Grilli, Carlo

Subject: RE: Personal License Review - Mr Kokulabavan Jeyerasa,_

Follow Up Flag Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged 8 B

Good morning,

In reference to the personal licence review for Mr Kokulabavan Jeyarasa | have no further information to submit to
the Board. [ refer the Board to my previous review application and additional reports submitted for the premises
licence review hearing conducted on 21 December 2023.

Kind regards,

Licensing Standards Officer

East Lothian Council

Licensing, Administration and Democratic Services
John Muir House

Haddington

EH41 3HA

Tel: 01620 827478
Mob: 07774 435158

Please note the LSO is not permitted to provide legal advice and can only assist you with guidance as to what is
required under licensing legislation . It is recommended that you consult with a licensing agent or solicitor if you
require legal advice on matters.

For additional guidance please see the East Lothian Licensing and Forum Website -
East Lothian Council

From: Grilli, Carlo <cgrilli@eastlothian.gov.uk>

Sent: 04 January 2024 15:39

To: Licensing <licensing@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Licensing Standards Officer <lso@eastlothian.gov.uk>

Cc: Bruce, Lachlan <lbruce@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Cassini, Cher <ccassini@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Dugdale, Fiona
<fdugdale@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Gilbert, Neil <ngilbert@eastlothian.gov.uk>; McGuire, George

<gmcguire @eastlothian.gov.uk>; McMillan, John <jmcmillan@eastlothian.gov.uk>

Subject: Personal License Review - Mr Kokulabavan Jeyerasa,

Following the decision by the board relating to the Review of Premises License for premises known as Nisa, Gifford |
should be grateful if you would request on behalf of the licensing board report from the Licensing standards officer
and Police Scotland providing up date on position following the outcome of review of Premises license on 22 Dec
which requested a review of Personal Licence to come before the Board at our meeting in January.

Kind Regards

Carlo
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EAST LOTHIAN COUNCIL

Licensing Standards

From: Licensing Standards Officer To: C. Grilli
Clerk to the Licensing Board

Date: 13t December 2023
Subject: LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005
PREMISES LICENCE REVIEW

PREMISES LICENCE NO EL0131, KOKULABAVAN JEYERASA
NISA, DUNS ROAD, GIFFORD, EAST LOTHIAN, EH41 4QW

FURTHER INFORMATION

On 13t December 2023, | was contacted by a Licensing Manager from Dumfries and Galloway
Licensing Board. The officer detailed that there were two premises licences held by
Kokulabavan Jeyarasa in the Dumfries and Galloway Licensing Board area and that he was a
connected person for other premises in Fife. She detailed that information had come to their
attention from police that Mr Jeyerasa had not been running the premises he had licences for
well.

The Licensing Officer detailed that Kokulabavan Jeyerasa is currently named as the premises
manager at Nisa, Calside Road, Dumfries and has been since he was appointed in 14t
November 2019. Mr Jeyerasa is also the licence holder at this premises. A call was made to
Mr Jeyerasa by the Licensing Manager on 13% December 2023. During this call Mr Jeyarasa
confirmed that he remained premises manager at the premises in Dumfries and that there
had been no change to this. The Licensing Manager thereafter sent this information to me by
email (Document 7).

The Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 allows for a person who holds a personal licence to be
appointed on only one premises licence as premises manager at any one time.

Section 19 Premises manager

(1) In this Act, “premises manager”, in relation to any licensed premises in respect of which
a premises licence has effect, means the individual for the time being specified as such in
the premises licence.

In August 2021, an application to transfer the premises licence under Section 33 of the Act,
to Kokulabavan Jeyarsa was received and subsequently granted on 12t October 2021. It is
unknown when Mr Jeyerasa took control of the shop, however was responsible for the sale
of alcohol and the premises licence from this date onwards.
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| have spoken with Ms Carol Mackay, who was named as premises manager prior to the
transfer under the control of Co-op. She has confirmed for me that when the business
changed to Nisa, her employment was dealt with as a TUPE transfer to Kokulabavan Jeyarasa.

Ms Mackay ended her employment within 6 weeks of the change with her last day being 215
November 2021. No notification was made to East Lothian Licensing Board that the premises
manager had left by Mr Jeyarasa.

On 14 February 2022, an application was made by Kokulabavan Jeyarasa to appoint himself
as premises manager. At this time no objections were received, the application was processed
and he was specified on the licence. East Lothian Licensing Board does not have the ability to
check if a person is named on another premises licence.

It has been confirmed with Dumfries and Galloway Licensing Board, that Kokulabavan
Jeyarasa in his capacity as premises licence holder, did not make the notification required
under section 54 of the Act, that he had left the premises in Dumfries and he confirmed with
the Licensing Board that he has remained in this position from 2019. This means that from
14t February 2022 he was specified as premises manager on two premises licences.

Section 19 (2) of the Act deals with this scenario as follows:

(2) An individual may not, at any one time, be the premises manager of more than one licensed
premises; and, accordingly, if an individual who is the premises manager of licensed premises
is subsequently specified in the premises licence of other licensed premises as the premises
manager of those other premises, the subsequent specification is of no effect.

Therefore, Mr Jeyarasa made an incompetent application to East Lothian Licensing Board, and
his appointment as premises manager on the premises licence at Nisa in Gifford had no effect
and was not a valid appointment.

As a result, the premises has traded and made sales of alcohol from 22" November 2021,
when Ms Mackay left, until 17" November 2023 when the current premises manager
Sivapatham Suthakaran was appointed, without a premises manager, a period of 2 years. This
was a breach of the premises licence condition - 4(1 ) Alcohol is not to be sold on the premises
at any time when— (a)there is no premises manager in respect of the premises.

Selling alcohol in breach of a condition of the licence is an offence under Section 1 of the
Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005. A person guilty of this offence is liable on summary conviction
to a fine not exceeding £20,000, imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months or both.

This information has been reported to police for investigation and their determined action.
It is the premises licence holder’s responsibility to inform the appropriate licensing board of
the circumstances surrounding the premises licences and any changes. Mr Jeyarsa has

completely failed in his responsibility to do this and made an incompetent application. He has
displayed utter contempt for the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, and the regulated industry
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that he works within. The premises has been completely mismanaged and run with no regard
to the law. By doing this he has failed to uphold any of the licensing objectives.

| have now submitted several reports following my initial review application in relation to this
premises as further issues have been investigated and come to light.

It appears that the premises has been and continues to be run by Selvarasa Jeevakaran
(Rajan) and that Mr Jeyerasa has had little or no involvement in the premises and simply
handed over responsibility. Selvarasa Jeevakaran (Rajan) is clearly not a fit individual to have
been put in this position, even by Mr Jeyarasa’s own admission, stating that he was not ready
and needed more training. Other members of staff have repeatedly called him boss and
phoned him for assistance. This is not because of any cultural understanding, where a staff
member who was there before them is referred to as boss, it is simply because he has been,
and continues to be in charge. | believe the reason Selvarasa Jeevakaran (Rajan) was
deliberately evasive and provided false details on several occasions, is because at the time he
did not possess a valid residents permit. The permit, he eventually showed a scanned copy
of, was issued 10™ November 2023, after the first visit was made to the premises.

When | met with Mr Jeyerasa on the premises on 16™ November 2023, he was extremely
unfamiliar with the premises, and it appeared he had not been there in sometime.

| believe, that the premises manager Sivapatham Suthkaran was appointed in a hurry to
appease myself and the police. | have doubts that he will have any continued involvement in
the premises, even he himself, has said that he lives in Kircaldy and travel is difficult. When
PC Wilson and | observed him in the premises at our last visit on 6™ December 2023 (2 %
weeks following his appointment) he did not know where anything was, could not answer
guestions about the CCTV, and the repositioning of the dog food in the alcohol area. He
continued to refer to Selvarasa Jeevakaran (Rajan) to answer for him. | believe he was in the
shop on our visit but only because Mr Jeyerasa was aware we would be visiting that week.
Selvarasa Jeevakaran (Rajan) has repeatedly told me that he is changing the shop to Premier,
however this information had never been given to me by Mr Jeyerasa until | asked him directly
on the phone, where it appeared he was seemed unaware of the change but then told me
that it was happening. | contacted Nisa Head Office who confirmed that the premises was still
under Nisa and that they had no notification that this was changing.

The new staff members that were trained for our visit on 16" November 2023, have not been
found back in the premises by myself or to my knowledge by police. Since the first visit on 8™
November 2023, only one staff member, Selvarasa Jeevakaran (Rajan), has remained from
prior to November 2023 and all other staff have been replaced. This is a significant turn over
in staff in a very short period, and the only reason given for this change in staff is that it was
required for shifts and sickness.
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Full timeline of events

e 14™ November 2019 - Kokulabavan is appointed premise manager at Nisa, Calside
Road, Dumfries

e 12 October 2021 —Transfer was made by Co-op and subsequently granted to transfer
the premises licence at Nisa, Duns Road, Gifford to Kokulabavan Jeyarasa

e 12" October 2021 Ms Carol Mackay remained as premises manager named on the
licence

e 215 November 2021 - Ms Carol Mackay ceased employment at Nisa, Duns Road,
Gifford. No notification was given to the Licensing Board of this event under section
54 of the Act.

e 14™ February 2022 — Kokulabavan Jeyarasa submits an application by way of minor
variation to appoint himself as premises manager at Nisa, Duns Road, Gifford (gap of
approx. 3 months)

e 8% November 2023 — visit to premises by LSO to deliver final warning letter for
payment of annual fee, due by 1% October 2023. Untrained staff members found as
well as alcohol out with the display area.

e 8™ November 2023 — Section 14 compliance notice issued by LSO for breach of
condition 6 — staff training, requiring immediate action.

e 14" November 2023 —return visit to premises by LSO and Police. Untrained staff found
in the premises.

e 16™ November 2023 — prearranged visit to premises by LSO and Police to view training
records. All new staff within premises.

e 17™ November 2023 — new premises manager Sivapatham Suthkaran added to
premises licence.

e 27 November 2023 — return visit to premises by LSO, another new staff member
found and training record requested, concerns over training identified. Alcohol found
on the shop floor and stockroom in state of disorder.

e 27™ November 2023 - section 14 notice issued for breach of condition 13 — alcohol
outwith display area and concerns in relation to fire safety sent to Scottish Fire and
Rescue Service.

e Kokulabavan emailed with concerns re staff training and condition of premises replied
a few days later as per submitted emails.

e 15t December 2023 — phone call with Kokulabavan asking | return to the premises to
check further training records and conversation about the poor state of the premises
new staff members training. Informed review application had been submitted.
Arrangement made that a visit would be conducted next week to view training
records.

e 6™ December 2023 — visit by LSO and Police and new training records viewed.

e 13% December 2023 — information received from Dumfries and Galloway Licensing
Team Manager that Kokulabavan was a premises manager in a premises in Dumfries.
Information reported to police.
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Breaches of Licence Conditions and Offences
e Breach of condition 4 — premises manager
e Breach of condition 6 — staff training

e Breach of condition 13 — alcohol outwith display area

Selling alcohol when a breach of a condition has occurred is an offence under Section 1 of the
Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005

Prohibition of unlicensed sale of alcohol
(1) Alcohol is not to be sold on any premises except under and in accordance with—
(a) a premises licence, or
(b )an occasional licence,
Conclusion
In light of the above further information, | ask the board to consider if the premises licence
holder, Kokulabavan Jeyarasa, having regard to the licensing objective is a “fit and proper”

person to hold a premises licence.

A licensing board can find, that one of the grounds for review has been established, even if
that was not the ground referred to in the original review proposal.

The full circumstances that | have described, detail that this has not been a breach of a single
condition, but multiple breaches of conditions and significant management failings by the
premises licence holder Mr Jeyarasa, to the detriment of the licensing objectives.

Licensing Standards Officer
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PREMISES LICENCE REVIEW — DOCUMENT AND PHOTO PACK

PREMISES LICENCE NO EL0131, KOKULABAVAN JEYERASA
NISA, DUNS ROAD, GIFFORD, EAST LOTHIAN, EH41 4QW

Contents
Document 1 — Section 14 Licensing (Scotland) Act Notice, issued 8" November 2023
Document 2 — Training Records Seized 14" November 2023

Document 3 — Receipt for seizure of training records 14" November 2023

Document 4 — Email correspondence to Kokulabavan Jexerasa following visit on 14*"November 2023
including previous correspondence on 8" November 2023

Document 5 — Section 14 Licensing (Scotland ) Act Notice, issued 27*" November 2023
Document 6 — Email correspondence to Kokulabavan Jeyerada following visit on 27" November 2023
Document 7 — Information from Dumfries and Galloway Licensing Boards, 13th December 2023

Photos
Shop floor 1-3

Storeroom 4-7
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DOCUMENT 2

LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005
TRAINING OF STAFF - TRAINING RECORD

Name of member of staff - |

The Act

Schedule 3
6, - (1) No person (other than a person who holds a personal licence) is to wark in the

premises in the capacity mentioned in sub-paragraph (2) unless that person has complied
With such requirements as to the training of staff as may be prescribed for the purposes of
this paragraph.

(2) That is a capacity (whether paid or unpaid) which involves the person-

(a) making sales of alcohol, or
(b) where alcohol is sold on the premises for consumption on the premises, serving such

alcohol to any person.

DECLARATION
TRAINEE

I confirm that | have received the training
required by the Licensing (Training of Staff) (Scotland) Regulations 2007.

[Signed: WAVAAATRVN  APONY ALY
_/ﬁ \K Yoy dV(1YC(}p n
AINER h |

& .
| [k‘)kui’b\)ﬂ wan 32’5 QT] confirm that | have provided the above named member of staff:
with the training required under the Licensing (Training of Staff)(Scotland) Regulations 2007
on [Date(s)- ]

[Signed:

[Where signatory is the holder of a Personal Licence issued under the Licensing (Scotland)
Acca 2005, please insert the number and the name of Licensing Board which issued the
licence here:

Personal LicenceNo- = I 430 &

Licensing Board- £1le

There signatory is a person other than the holder of a Personal Licence described above,
please provide details of the qualification held and accredited by the Scottish Qualifications
Authority for the purposes of regulation 2(b) of the Licensing (Training of Staff) (Scotland)

Regulations 2007.
The name of any company by which the person is employed to provide training should also

be given.]
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DOCUMENT 3

Document 3 - Receipt for seizure of training records 14" November 2023

0 f X/; 'ntml7
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DOCUMENT 7

Licensing Standards Officer

From: I

Sent: 13 December 2023 16:52
To: Licensing Standards Officer
ce I

Subject: Kokulabavan Jeyarasa

You don't often get email from sharon.davidson@dumgal.gov.uk. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise
the sender and know the content is safe.

OFFICIAL

Good afternoon-

Further to our earlier conversation, | can confirm that Kokulabavan Jeyarasa is the current Premises Licence Holder
and Designated Premises Manager for the premises Nisa, Calside Road, Dumfries.

Mr Jeyarasa became the DPM on 14/11/2019 and has remained the DPM since that date. We have not received any
Section 54 notification to confirm that he has ceased to hold that role. During a conversation with Mr Jeyarasa this

morning (13 December 2023) he confirmed that he still remains the DPM at those premises.

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards

My working pattern is Monday to Thursday all day and Friday morning.

Licensing, Dumfries and Galloway Council
Kirkbank House, English Street, Dumfries DG1 2HS

Disclaimer:

This email, from Dumfries and Galloway Council, and any files transmitted with it, is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or
entity to whom they are addressed.

If you are not the intended recipient of this email (and any attachment) please inform the sender by return email and destroy all copies. If you are
not the intended recipient or responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, disclosure, review,
dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this email is strictly prohibited. Please be aware that communication by internet email is not secure as
messages can be intercepted and read by someone else. Dumfries and Galloway Council do not accept liability for any loss or damage which may
result from this email or any files attached. It is your responsibility to scan this email and any attachments for computer viruses or other defects.
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Any email including its content may be monitored and used by the Council for reasons of security and form monitoring internal compliance with the
policy on staff use. Email monitoring or blocking software may also be used.

Any email message sent or received by the Council may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the Freedom of Information
(Scotland) Act 2002. For further information and to view the Council’s privacy statement please click here

5% SAVE PAPER - Please do not print this e-mail unless absolutely necessary

OFFICIAL
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Licensing

From: Wilson, Lee-2 <Lee.Wilson2@scotland.police.uk>

Sent: 12 December 2023 10:39

To: Licensing

Subject: RE: IMPORTANT - Licensed Premises Review Hearing - EL0131- Nisa - Gifford
[OFFICIAL]

Attachments: Premises Licence Review.docx

| CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise
the sender and know the content is safe.

OFFICIAL
Good Morning,

| have been asked to provide comments to the Board in relation to the above premises licence review
submitted by the East Lothian LSO. My contact and observations are outlined in the attached word
document.

If you require anything further please get in touch.

Kind Regards,

Lee Wilson

PC 12294 / )973

East Lothian Liquor & Civic Licensing Officer

Police Scotland | Tranent Police Station, High Street, EH33 1LW
(Currently at Dalkeith Police Station — 07866219088)

Email : lee.wilson2@scotland.police.uk
Website / Larach-lin: www.scotland.police.uk
Twitter: @policescotland

Facebook: www.facebook.com/policescotland

From: Licensing [mailto:licensing@eastlothian.gov.uk]

Sent: 01 December 2023 12:45

To: Lothian Scot Borders Licensing East Mid Lothian <LothianScotBordersLicensingEastMid@Scotland.police.uk>;
Fire (torquil.cramer@firescotland.gov.uk) <torquil.cramer@firescotland.gov.uk>; Environment Reception
<environment@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Environmental Health/Trading Standards <ehts@eastlothian.gov.uk>; Trading
Standards <tradingstandards@eastlothian.gov.uk>

Subject: IMPORTANT - Licensed Premises Review Hearing - ELO131- Nisa - Gifford

Dear Consultees,
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